




















             

             

GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUANITIES AGENCY 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

May 14, 2024 

 

I.  CALL TO ORDER: 

 
The Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities Agency’s regular board meeting called 

to order at 3:09 pm by Chair, Monica Guzman. 

 

II. ATTENDANCE: 

 

Board Members in Person:  Monica Guzman (Chair), Donna Kloppenburg 

(Secretary) Simone Bollinger, and Paul Mendiola 

Board Members Online:  Frank Rabon  

       CAHA Staff:  Mark Duenas, Angie Taitague, (Executive Director) Jackie Balbas 

       Online Guests:  Festpac Co-Chairs:  Judy Flores, Eileen Meno, Master of Dance 

 

III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

Angie Taitague, CAHA Executive Director, requested to table the April 9, 2024 

minutes.   

A motion was made to table the board minutes of April 9, 2024 until the June 

2024 meeting by Secretary, Donna Kloppenburg. Seconded by Simone Bollinger. 

All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 

IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT: 

 

• Revolving Checking Account Balance as of May 14, 2024, is forty-two 

thousand three hundred twenty-eight dollars and seventy-five cents. 

$42,328.75 

• FESTPAC Checking Account Balance as of May 14, 2024 is two hundred 

ninety thousand dollars one hundred fifty-two and sixty-one cents. 

$290,152.61 



• Percent of the Arts Checking Account Balance as of May 14, 2024 is four 

hundred thirty thousand four hundred fifty-six dollars and seventy-five 

cents.  $430,456.75  

• Percent of the Arts Savings Account Balance as of May 14, 2024. (which 

will be moved to a TCD account) One million one hundred eighty-nine 

thousand seven hundred and twenty-three dollars and sixty-two cents.  

$1,189,723.62. 

 

Discussion:  Simone Bollinger: Asked a CAHA was to build a permanent building; 

would the funds be the used from the percent of the arts funding source? As per 

Director, Angie Taitague, the TCD will be used for that purpose. Secretary Donna 

Kloppenburg:  brought up about this matter before the former CAHA Director and 

indicated a to search for property should be done first in order to secure funding for 

this purpose. A percent of the percent for the arts fund will be transferred to a TCD 

account in the interim. Chair Monica agreed with Simone that it is a good idea for 

these funds potentially be used as a matching contribution requirement for a grant 

award in the future.  

• The Percent for the Arts Rules & Regulation is status quo. 

• Traditional Master’s Program:  Requested to table or moved down under 

the agenda items. 

• Art bank:  Assessments are ongoing. 

• Website:  Changes are ongoing. Andrea Murer is assigned to work with 

this program.  

• Lily will watch the office and will be back and forth from the Guam 

Public Library, while Vince Reyes is on personal leave time. The CAHA 

staff that will be attending FESTPAC 2024 other than the Administrative 

Officer, is (Angie, Jackie, Mark, Noah, Andrea). She has assigned each 

coordinator to assist each chair and their genre.   

• Also, the Director requested for approval for per diem for the six (6) non-

delegates staff to include the Head of Delegation (Monica Guzman) in the 

amount of $36,079.50 which will cover (6) six people. Simone:  inquired 

about Andrea if she will be on board CAHA. According to the Director, 

her (GG1) documents are in progress and waiting for approval and will 

start as a Program Coordinator I.  The cost will come from the previous 

Program Coordinator III remaining salary amount.  Simone inquired 

about the different amounts for each per diem. As per Angie, the amount 

is 25% more, and that Chair Guzman travel days and the CAHA 

Director are much longer than anticipated.   
 

A motion was made that the board authorized in the amount of $6,078.50 the per 

diem cost for (Monica Guzman, Angie Taitague, Mark Duenas, Jackie Balbas, and 

Noah Sablan) for the purpose of Festpac 2024 by Secretary, Donna Kloppenburg. 

Seconded by Simone Bollinger. All in favor.  Motion carried.  



• Further, the Director also requested in a letter to WESTAF regarding the 

remaining balance of $11,000 to be used for the reprint of the CAHA 

Master’s poster’s and to continue to utilized the go-smart module for the 

next CAHA grant cycle in FY 2025. 

 

V. FESTPAC 2024 REPORT: 

 

First, with exactly twenty days, eight hours, thirty-six minutes and twenty seconds 

left for the opening ceremony. CAHA and Festpac Chair Guzman acknowledged a 

special appreciation to the genre chairs. (Dr. Judy Flores, Dr. Mike Bevacqua, 

Master, Eileen Meno, and Maria Barcinas) who all stepped up to the plate in 

organizing their group trip). 

1. CAHA Chair Guzman pointed out that the 108 Guam Delegation is final. 

Initially there were 110 but two Master’s delegation will not be attending. There 

are 48 under the performing arts, 11 for chant, 8 for literary arts, 37 for 

DESEA, and 4 chairs. The airlines are already paid. However, the two available 

seats are on hold and the board need to decide who to cover the two remaining 

seats.  Her recommendation is to open this offer to delegates, board members or 

the general public? Secretary Kloppenburg asked if anyone who can use these 

tickets and what will be their role.  Simone Bollinger asked about the chairs 

group. Chair Guzman responded that their role should be to help the chairs is 

their perspective areas.  Frank Rabon inquired if the genres chair is comfortable 

with the number interns of their delegation based on their limitations. Monica: 

with the two master that are from the DESEA group could always use more 

people. Frank:  He recommended if board member Paul Mendiola and as an 

artist and a member of the board to represent at the Festpac.  Paul Mendiola 

appreciated the suggestion and be honored to represent Guam. All in favor. 

Frank Rabon mentioned if there can be a pre-approval of a second delegation in 

the next meeting. Chair Guzman asked Frank to make a motion on his 

recommendation.   

 

On the motion:  To have the CAHA board to pre-approve the recommendation of 

all the chairs in the meeting to be held the following day to finalize that last selected 

replacement delegate by Frank Rabon. Seconded by Secretary Donna Kloppenburg. 

All in favor. Motion carried. 

 

2.  Clearances have all been received and under review.  RFQs for the uniforms 

were submitted. Fabric and wraps were awarded and anticipated to delivered 

before the photo session. Also, the RFQ for the packing, fumigation and 

transportation was awarded. The container should be arrived on May 26, or 27, 

2024. The Guam rooming list was provided to Hawaii organizers of the 100 

delegates at the Johnson Hall at the University of Hawaii, Manoa. The staff and 

media reservations were made at the hotels. Staff had been working on the 

ground transportation, shuttles and vans. All tickets had been purchased and the 

staff will provide the list and emails addresses to be provided their ticket 



information.  Dr. Faye Untalan and Peter Cruz along with their committee have 

been supportive with regards to the Hotnu equipment in Honolulu. There is an 

advance team that will leave early to prepare. There will 3 three culinary 

delegates that will be designing with the help of Vince Reyes for the Guam hut at 

the convention center. A cultural sensitivity workshop will take place at the 

Sinajana Community Central Arts Center and conducted by Pale Eric Forbes 

along with the President of the National Olympic committee to provide a few 

words. On Friday, May 24, 2024, there will be a delegation mass at the Lady of 

Peace Safe Journey church at 5pm in Chalan Pago. The official delegation photo 

will take place at the Festival Huts at the Chamorro Village. On Monday, May 

27, 2024, the advance team will leave. On June 1, 2024 the performing and chant 

presentation at the Guam Micronesian Island Fair in Ypao will be held. Also, the 

remaining the Guam delegation will leave from June 3, to June 6, 2024.  The 

Hawaii schedule followed on June 3, to 4, 2024, the 40th Council of the Pacific 

Arts Culture and the Ministers of Culture meeting will take place.  On June 5, 

2024 is the Traditional Va’a Welcome Ceremony. On June 6, the Festpac 

Opening Ceremony. June 7 to 15, 2024 is the festival and June 16, 2024 in the 

Closing Ceremony. Further, there was a Grant application submitted to 

WESTAF for the amount of $42.000 for each territory to assist with Festpac 

2024. Another funding opportunity from Mellon Foundation is available in the 

amount of $60,000to assist with Festpac. Secretary Donna Kloppenburg inquired 

about the two funding opportunities of the $42.000 and possible $60,000 and 

what are the specifics it can be used for?  Chair Guzman responded for Festpac 

activities.  In conclusion, there were a lot more to do for Festpac 2024 moving 

forward. 

 

 VI:  BOARD ACTION: 

• Approval of Festpac Disbursements 

 

Director, Taitague indicated that this was discussed at the last Board Meeting. She’ll 

review and the previous board minutes to confirm if fact this was discussed. 

 

VII:  OLD BUSINESS:  

• Masters Recognition Program 

 

Chair Guzman indicated that this was tasked member Frank Rabon to review the 

packet moving forward. Frank Rabon stated he can recall from the last board meeting that 

CAHA would be accepting nominations in April 2024 and that it would be the public law 

that was enacted in 2004 and subsequent every (4) four years thereafter. With the 

amendments and changes, CAHA was on the right track as far as protecting the integrity 

or the recognition with regards to anyone becoming a master. He hopes that the current 

board members are aware of this program. Simone Bollinger stated that on the second 



page, on the idea of the workshops as a format is concern might be taken out of this section. 

On page 3, some grammatical errors need to be fixed with the number page format. The 

supporting material where CAHA is the gate keeper, which she suggested on page 4 section 

h, to have these original documents returned to the applicant if not been nominated and 

selected and remove it altogether.  Chair Guzman mentioned that this a good point. Frank 

Rabon was in agreement to remove that sentence line.  Frank Rabon stated that the 

nomination process be on the same page as the history of the Master Award. We constantly 

used the phrase FOLK Arts which the United States utilizes because they have no concept 

of what traditional practices is all about. So, is the Master Award a traditional practice 

award that is unique to the Chamorro Culture? Any art that is conducive to at the very 

beginning of the eighty’s and should we need clarification on this matter? Simone Bollinger 

asked Mr. Rabon if the sentence that traditional folk-art aspects of learning behavioral 

cultural that are transferred thorough word of mouth?  Frank Rabon answered yes, that’s 

traditional arts. Simone Bollinger stated she believed that Guam defines traditional and 

folk in the application as we use it, and the United States definition may not apply to Guam 

especially how we apply it on Guam.  Frank Rabon stated that there needs to be consensus 

of the definition of this process.  We need to have the community understand about how the 

people of Guam become a master.  Chair Guzman asked if we need to clarify the definition. 

Frank Rabon responded no, there needs to be an agreement that the definition is clear 

moving forward. Also, if the master’s program was built on the Folk Art/Traditional 

practices that was rooted in grass roots that are past down to one generation to the next 

usually through oral traditions in observance as a master to qualify in this criterion. 

Simone Bollinger added with regards on part 6 in the nomination packet, where it should 

indicate that definition for that purpose should be further reviewed. Paul Mendiola asked if 

there is a final committee that reviews and votes on the application process. Chair Guzman 

said yes.  Also, there’s seemed to be a confusion on the term Folk-Arts and Traditional Arts. 

She recommended to delete Folk-Arts and Traditional and replace it to the “Heritage Arts” 

which defines as “An Artistic Expression that are grown through time in a group and 

community that shares a common occupation etc.”  Frank Rabon agreed. Simone Bollinger 

recommended to remove the word Alabama State in the sentence. Paul Mendiola stated do 

we need to consider with regards to grants in concerns? The Director answered no. Chair 

Guzman recommended to have the nomination information cleaned up and to provide a 

copy to the Board members.  The nominations are to open on May, 2024 and closed on 

August 2024. Simone Bollinger asked to get a copy of the Master’s book for her review.     

 

 

 

 

 

 



 VIII: NEW BUSINESS: 

  None 

 VIII:  Announcements: 

  None 

 IX:  Adjournment 

At 4:14 pm the meeting was moved to adjourn by Simone Bollinger, and 

seconded by board secretary Donna Kloppenburg.  All in favor.  

 

 

MINUTES CERTIFIED AND ATTESTED TO BE TRUE AND CORRECT BY: 

 

_________________________________    ____________________________ 

Donna Kloppenburg,      Date 

Secretary, Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities 

 

PREPARED BY: 

_________________________________    ____________________________ 

Mark A. Duenas       Date 

Program Coordinator I 

Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities 






















	July 2024 Board Meeting Packet
	Minutes 05142024 Final
	July 2024 Board Meeting Packet

